
                                        APPROVED                                       
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

NEW LENOX BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

New Lenox Village Hall,  

One Veterans Parkway 

Monday June 27, 2016 

   #16-17 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Regular Meeting of the New Lenox Village Board of Trustees was called to order at 

7:01 p.m. by Mayor Baldermann in the Council Chambers of the New Lenox Village 

Hall. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

ROLL CALL 

Upon Roll Call by the Clerk, the following members of the corporate authorities 

answered “Here” or “Present”: 

 

   Trustees Smith, Madsen, Bowden, Johnson and Mayor Baldermann 

 

    Absent - Trustees Butterfield and Finnegan 

  

QUORUM 

There being a sufficient number of members of the corporate authorities in attendance to 

constitute a quorum, the meeting was declared in order. 

 

OTHER OFFICIALS IN ATTENDANCE 

Also in attendance were the Village Administrator Kurt Carroll, Village Clerk Laura 

Ruhl, Director of Public Works Brian Williams, Building and Zoning Administrator 

Warren Rendleman, Assistant Village Administrator/Community Development Director 

Robin Ellis, Chief Bob Sterba, Engineer Will Nash, Finance Director Kim Auchstetter 

and Attorney Chris Spesia. 

 

PROCLAMATION – Providence Catholic High School Baseball Team – 2016 IHSA 

4A Championship 

Mayor Baldermann presented Providence Catholic High School Baseball Team with a 

Proclamation for being the 2016 IHSA 4A Champions. 

 

PROCLAMATION – Dedication & Exemplary Community Service – Mark T. 

Sagen 

Mayor Baldermann presented Mark T. Sagen with a Proclamation for his Dedication & 

Exemplary Community Service. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENT – 5th Annual Controlled Burn Beef Cook-Off – New Lenox Fire 

Protection District 

Mayor Baldermann announced that the New Lenox Fire Protection District would be 

holding their annual Controlled Burn Beef Cook-Off on July 30, 2016. 



  2 June 27, 2016  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to approve the following 9 items on the CONSENT AGENDA #16-17 was made 

by Trustee Smith and seconded by Trustee Madsen.  

 

A  - Minutes of the Regular Meeting – June 13, 2016 

B  - Ordinance #2576 Adopting Prevailing Wage Rates 

C  - Approval of Purchase – Tasers – Police Department 

D  - Ordinance #2577 Amending Chapter 18 of the Municipal Code – Fire Resistance 

Rating and Assemblies – 2nd Read 

E  - Approval of Purchase – Pick-Up-Trucks – Public Works 

F  - Approval of a Contract for Utility Audit - Azavar 

G  - Resolution #16-27 Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Extension to Tolling 

Agreement with IMET (Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund) 

H - Resolution #16-28 Authorizing the Execution of a Fuel Pricing Agreement – Al 

Warren Oil 

I - Approval of Bidding Services Proposal for WWTP#2 Expansion – AE Com 

Technical Services 

 

Upon roll call, the vote was: 

 

AYES:  5  Trustees Smith, Madsen, Bowden,    

Johnson and Mayor Baldermann                                   

 

ABSTAIN:  1  Trustee Bowden – Item A 

        

NAYS:  0  

  

ABSENT:  2             Trustees Butterfield and Finnegan 

                                                             

The motion carried. 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

Consideration of an Ordinance Rezoning Property – Silver Cross Hospital West 

Campus – 1st Read 

Ms. Ellis reported that Silver Cross purchased the property just west of the hospital that 

had been owned by New Lenox School District 122. The proposal is to rezone the parcel 

to the H-Hospital District to allow for the construction of a medical office as well as other 

commercial uses that would be permitted under the H-District. The Plan Commission 

held a Public Hearing on the request where there were some residents that had stated 

some concerns. The Comprehensive Plan for this property recommends office uses for 

the bulk of the property and medium density residential for the western 15-acres. Overall 

Staff and the Plan Commission felt that the H-District was consistent with the 

recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan and the Plan Commission recommended 

approval. At this time the only use Silver Cross discussed with Village is an ambulatory 

surgical center in the northeast corner of the property. Subject to the approval of the 

rezoning they would have to go through detailed site plan review and any future 

subdivision of the property would need to be reviewed by the Plan Commission and be 

approved by the Village Board. Ms. Ellis reported there will be two detention ponds at 



  3 June 27, 2016  

the lowest portions of the property which are located at two residential street stubs, so by 

the nature of this development there would not be the ability for commercial traffic to cut 

through those residential neighborhoods.  

 

Mayor Baldermann asked a representative of Silver Cross Hospital if they had anything 

to add at this time. They did not. Mayor Baldermann stated there are residents that would 

like to speak on this item. He reminded that this is only for the rezoning of the property.  

 

Gary Beckfeld, 19004 Spring Creek Street – expressed his concerns with the weeds and 

animals on the property as well as future building. He asked about the drainage. 

 

Mayor Baldermann stated that certainly there will be future buildings but Silver Cross 

will have to come back before the Village Board for approval. Mayor Baldermann said he 

understood that the weeds were supposed to be taken care of.  

 

A representative of Silver Cross Hospital noted the weeds have been cut 45-feet in. 

 

Ms. Ellis stated that is typically what the Village requires for vacant properties.  

 

Mayor Baldermann stated Silver Cross is following the requirements of the Village. He 

noted that Silver Cross held a meeting with the neighbors. Silver Cross wants to be a 

good neighbor and the Village wants to make sure our residents are taken care and all we 

can ask is that they follow our ordinances. He added our Engineers are involved with 

them and we make sure there are no changes or that there are improvements to the parcel. 

 

Susanne Picchi of 18913 Spring Creek expressed her concerns with the weeds on the 

property which cause animals. She asked if Silver Cross could contract the previous 

farmer to spray and kill the weeds once and for all. She asked about the proposed 

building height.  

 

Ms. Ellis explained before the Village Board tonight is the rezoning. Under the H-District 

a medical office building can be 135-feet tall and other buildings can be 85-feet tall. This 

district requires a 50-foot setback from the perimeter property lines so there would be 

more of a buffer than you would see from a commercial development along Route 30. 

This in not necessarily what Silver Cross is going to propose because this is the same 

zoning district as the hospital campus and the tallest building is six stories.  

 

Mayor Baldermann explained what the Staff is saying is this is what would be allowable 

in the H-District not necessarily what they propose to do. 

 

Ms. Picchi expressed her concerns regarding the construction and water flow. She 

explained she lives in the center of the street and water drains in her direction. She asked 

if there was a plan on what to do with the water. She requested the Board to rezone this 

property with restrictions of a one story building.  

 

Mr. Tryon, Vice President of Operations for Silver Cross Hospital stated they want to be 

good neighbors and called a meeting with the neighbors to try and share information 

before they went to the Plan Commission. He explained the timing of the closing was too 

late to coordinate any farming but they will look at that again next year and they will 

have a better idea of what they will be doing with the project.  Mr. Tryon explained the 



  4 June 27, 2016  

weeds were cut today but the weeds help stabilize the land so there is not a lot of water 

run-off.  Mr. Tryon stated that he had been told by the residents that there are existing 

water issues in the neighborhood and this project may help reduce some of the water 

runoff from that property to go into the detention ponds.  

 

Mayor Baldermann stated he appreciates what Mr. Tryon is saying but asked him to see if 

there is anything that can be done to try and assist with any nuisance animals that are 

coming from the property. Mayor Baldermann asked the Village Engineer, Will Nash, to 

stay on top of this project. He said we are very fortunate to have Silver Cross Hospital in 

our community but we are aware of existing residents and want to do what we can to try 

and minimize any impact in that area.  

 

Mr. Tryon noted the additional project is only a one story building which will be an 

outpatient surgery center will have approximately 20-25 patients a day. This will not be a 

high volume facility.  

 

Americo Picchi of 18913 Spring Creek, asked if the is a 50-foot buffer from property line 

to where the berm will be, does the berm start at the 50-foot or right at the property line.  

 

Ms. Ellis answered typically the berm is within that 50-feet. It would have to be 

engineered to make sure that any overland flow routes are maintained so where ever 

water is getting through now would continue to get through. That will all be reviewed at a 

later date.  

 

Trustee Smith stated that weeds are bad and need to be cut down to a point but you do 

need something to stabilize the land. He went on to say the water will be much better of 

an issue after the property is developed. There will be two good size detention ponds. 

 

Mr. Carroll noted the first detention pond will be built before the construction starts. 

 

Ms. Ellis stated the detention pond on the northwest corner will be built along with the 

required landscaping.  

 

Trustee Smith stated we have solved a lot more water issues by building then have been 

created. He went on to discuss water. 

 

Mr. Picchi asked when the construction starts is there a way to keep the dust down. 

 

Trustee Smith stated there should be dust control measures. He urged residents to call the 

Village if there is a problem.  

 

Mayor Baldermann thanked the residents for attending the meeting and expressing their 

concerns. 

 

Trustee Smith asked Mr. Tryon to please keep the local residents involved with the 

process and schedule of construction. Trustee Smith said it’s going to be a great project.  

 

Mayor Baldermann asked Mr. Tryon to please continue to reach out to those residents. 

 

This ordinance will come back for second read at the next Village Board meeting. 



  5 June 27, 2016  

 

Consideration of an Ordinance #2578 Granting Special Use for a Final P.U.D. Plat 

Century Oaks Re-Subdivision – 1st Read 

Ms. Ellis reported a few years ago the Village Board approved a site plan for Joliet 

Oncology located just to the east of Silver Cross Hospital campus in the Cedar Crossings 

development. They comprised part of Lot 4 and all of Lot 3 and are here to request to re-

subdivide the property into 3 lots. The existing building would remain on one of them 

and there would be two more lots for presumably future medical office uses, although, no 

uses are proposed at this time. Ms. Ellis explained because this is a P.U.D. it has to 

approved by ordinance. There is a letter in packet requesting to waive the second read 

and approve the ordinance.  

 

Trustee Smith stated he is not agreeable to waive second read and take action of the 

ordinance because he cannot see where the building lies on the lot.  

 

Ms. Ellis stated on a subdivision plat it does not show the structures.  

 

Trustee Smith stated he would rather see how the structures lay out, how it fit’s on Lot 5 

and what can we do with Lot 4 and Lot 3. Lot 4 looks rather small. He said he would like 

to see the footprint of the building and parking lot.  

 

Mr. Rod Tonelli of Ruettiger, Tonelli and Associates, Engineer for the project, reported 

the building on Lot 5 is already there so it wouldn’t be shown on a recorded plat.  

 

Trustee Bowden asked Ms. Ellis if she has the footprint. 

 

Ms. Ellis said we have the approved site plan but wouldn’t have the proposed new lot 

line. She said they verified that the subdivision wouldn’t create any non-conforming 

setbacks.  

 

Mayor Baldermann asked the petitioner why he wanted the Village Board to set aside the 

rules and waive second read on the proposed ordinance. Is there an issue for not having it 

approved at the next Board meeting? 

 

Mr. Tonelli stated they thought it was a simple subdivision. 

 

Trustee Bowden said she would have like to see the building footprint but not enough to 

not approve the waiver of second read.  

 

Motion to waive the second read was made by Trustee Bowden and seconded by Trustee 

Johnson. Motion was approved with Trustee Smith Recorded as voting NAY.   

 

Motion to approve the ordinance was made by Trustee Bowden and seconded by Trustee 

Johnson.  

 

Upon roll call, the vote was: 

 

AYES:  4  Trustees Madsen, Bowden,    

Johnson and Mayor Baldermann                                   

 



  6 June 27, 2016  

NAYS:  1             Trustee Smith 

  

ABSENT:  2             Trustees Butterfield and Finnegan 

                                                             

The motion carried. 

 

Consideration for Approval for a Temporary Use for Special Event – Dance 

Marathon Fundraiser 

Ms. Ellis reported this is a special event that can be approved at the Staff level but they 

are asking for a waiver of the $100.00 fee. This event will have three tents in the parking 

lot just to the west of the Ranch Frostie building for a dance marathon. The dance 

marathon will not actually be at this location but they will be accepting donations and the 

owner of Ranch Frostie has also pledged a portion of the sales for that day for childhood 

cancer.  

 

Trustee Bowden expressed her concerns with the parking.  

 

Ms. Ellis noted in the info only portion of the packet is a site plan showing where the 

parking will be located.  

 

Motion to approve the Temporary Use was made by Trustee Smith and seconded by 

Trustee Madsen 

 

Upon roll call, the vote was: 

 

AYES:  5  Trustees Smith, Madsen, Bowden,    

Johnson and Mayor Baldermann                                   

 

NAYS:  0  

  

ABSENT:  2             Trustees Butterfield and Finnegan 

                                                             

The motion carried. 

 

Consideration of an Ordinance Creating Chapter 94, Utilities, Article IV, 

Waterworks, Division 4, Cross-Connection Control of the Municipal Code – Cross 

Connection Control – 1st Read 

Mr. Williams reported at the most recent inspection of the Village’s water system, 

conducted by the Illinois E.P.A., the only deficiency noted was that the Village’s Cross 

Connection Program and that our code was not up to the standard that the I.E.P.A. 

desires. Our current practice references the Illinois Plumbing Code and does not contain 

the substantive elements necessary to comply with the current statutory requirements. 

The I.E.P.A. has provided us with a sample code that does contain the content needed to 

comply and this sample was used as the template to assemble the draft ordinance 

included in your packet. Should the Village remain deficient in regards to this code there 

is the potential to be cited in either a noncompliance advisory letter or the issuance of a 

violation notice for the water supply.  

 

Some of the major points of this ordinance are:    

 Defining a cross connection control program 



  7 June 27, 2016  

 Identifying cross connection control devices and where their use is required  

 Customer cross connection device testing and record keeping 

 Internal cross connection device testing and record keeping 

 Outlines the authority of the Village to perform a survey of cross connection 

devices 

 Outlines the authority of Village to take the actions necessary to eliminate a cross 

connection situation 

 

Mayor Baldermann said this ordinance will come back for second read at the next Village 

Board meeting. 

 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS  
 

MAYOR 

Mayor Baldermann reported on the upcoming 4th of July event in the Village Commons.  

 

VILLAGE ATTORNEY 

Mr. Spesia had no report. 

 

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  
Mr. Carroll had no report. 

 

PAYROLL & DISBURSEMENTS  
Trustee Bowden made the motion to approve our bi-monthly disbursements in the 

amount of $1,789,064.95.  In addition to these disbursements, approval is needed for 

biweekly payroll in the amount of $422,623.76 paid on June 24, 2016.                                 

 

Motion was seconded by Trustee Madsen 

 

Upon roll call, the vote was: 

 

AYES:  5  Trustees Smith, Madsen, Bowden,    

Johnson and Mayor Baldermann                                   

     

NAYS:  0  

  

ABSENT:  2             Trustees Butterfield and Bowden  

                                                           

The motion carried. 

 

QUESTIONS AND/OR COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR  
Bill Walter commented on the signs for Nelson Road extension. 

 

TRUSTEE COMMENTS 

 

Trustee Smith 

Trustee Smith talked about an accident he was recently involved in and how thankful he 

was to the residents that came out to help. He commented on the great job the fire 

department did.  



  8 June 27, 2016  

Trustee Smith commented on the recent 5K he ran for Trinity Services.  

 

Trustee Finnegan 

Absent. 

 

Trustee Madsen 

Trustee Madsen wished everyone a safe 4th of July. 

 

Trustee Butterfield  

Absent. 

 

Trustee Bowden 

Trustee Bowden commented on Trustee Smiths recent car accident. 

 

Trustee Bowden talked about the 4th of July event in the Commons.  

 

Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Johnson had no comments. 

 

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

No executive session needed. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn the meeting made by Trustee Smith and seconded by Trustee Bowden. 

Upon voice vote, the motion carried. The Regular Meeting of the Village of New Lenox 

Board of Trustees held on June 27, 2016 adjourned at 7:58pm. 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Laura Ruhl, Village Clerk 

 


